1		TOWN OF EAST WINDSOR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
2 3		I LAMMING AND ZOMING COMMISSION
4		REGULAR Meeting #1830
5		July 12, 2022
6		6:30 p.m.
7		John Daly Jr. Meeting Room (Town Hall)
8		11 Rye Street, Broad Brook, CT. 06016
9		(In-person)
10		
11		AND
12		
13		via ZOOM Teleconference
14		Meeting ID: 714 897 1799
15		
16		
17		MEETING MINUTES
18	*****Minutes	are not official until approved at a subsequent meeting*****
19		
20		DANAGA A DA A GEL OF LA DESTANAG
21	I. TIME AND	PHYSICAL PLACE OF MEETING:
22 23	Chairman Ga	hin called Decaylor Meeting #1920 of the Fact Window Dlanning and
24		bin called Regular Meeting #1830 of the East Windsor Planning and mission dated July 12, 2022 to Order at 6:30 p.m. The Meeting is
25	_	person in the John Daly, Jr. Meeting Room, Town Hall, 11 Rye
26	Street, Broad	
27	Birect, Broad	Brook, C1.
28	(Access to the	e meeting is being provided remotely as well)
29	DDECENIE.	December Manuscher Anna Calain (Chairman) Mishael Warralahi
30	PRESENT:	Regular Members: Anne Gobin (Chairman), Michael Kowalski
31 32		(Vice Chairman), David Leason, Joseph Sauerhoefer, and Jim
33		Thurz (Secretary).
34	ABSENT:	Frank Gowdy, Alternate Member.
35	ADSEAL.	Trainx Gowdy, Attendate Member.
36	GUESTS/SP	EAKERS present in-person: Director of Planning and
37		Development Calabrese hosted the meeting. Also present in
38		person were: Planning Consultant Michael D'Amato; Mark
39		Peterson, of Peterson and Gardner, representing the Yeomans
40		family, Carol Yeomans, and Dwight Yeomans; Tim Coon, of J. R.
41		Russo & Associates, representing USA Hauling, and Eric
42		Frederksen.
43		
44	GUESTS/SP	EAKERS present remotely identified as they sign in: Alan
45		Baker, Board of Selectman Liaison to the Planning and Zoning
46		

Commission, Selectman Nordell, First Selectman Bowsza, Heidi Alexander; Maureen, Peg (Margaret) Hoffman, Recording Secretary.

II. <u>ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM:</u>

Chairman Gobin noted a quorum was established as four Regular Members and one Alternate Member who is in the process of becoming a Regular member present at the Call to Order. She noted all members will participate in discussion and votes this evening.

III. ADDED AGENDA ITEMS:

Chairman Gobin reported the Commission has received another application which will be received under **RECEIPT OF APPLICATIONS**, she has received a request to move the order of business for **NEW PUBLIC HEARINGS** to hear Item C before Items A and B, and during the **BUSINESS MEETING** the Board will discuss the Community Investment Fund grant application for a new Community Center at Scout Hall.

Discussion followed regarding what items required a motion. The consensus of the Commission was that the new application would be automatically received under **RECEIPT OF NEW APPLICATIONS**, and the discussion of the Community Investment Funds could be taken at the time of the **BUSINESS**MEETING. Chairman Gobin called for a motion to change the order of business under the **NEW PUBLIC HEARINGS**.

MOTION: To change the order of the <u>NEW PUBLIC HEARINGS</u> to be taken as Item c, a, and b.

Kowalski moved/Leason seconded/<u>DISCUSSION</u>: None

79 VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz (No one opposed/No abstentions)

IV. <u>LEGAL NOTICE:</u>

The following Legal Notices were read by Chairman Gobin:

a. <u>PZ 2022-12: 148 North Rd, Unit #4 – Special Use Permit – Tattoo Salon, Applicant: Jerome Swanson:</u>

The East Windsor Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, July 12, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. Details on how to attend will be published on the Commission's Agenda and will be made available on the Town's website.

The Applicant for **PZ-2022-12** is Jerome Swanson for 148 North Road, Unit 4, requesting a Special Use Permit for a tattoo studio. Map 124, Block 12, Lot 11-A. The Zone is B-3. A full copy of the application is available on the Planning and Zoning Commission's Webpage on the Town's Website. All interested persons may attend this meeting and provide verbal or written comments regarding this application.

The Notice was published in the Journal Inquirer on June 24th and July 1st.

Chairman Gobin reported on the **second** Legal Notice:

The East Windsor Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, July 12, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. Details on how to attend will be published on the Commission's Agenda and will be made available on the Town's website.

The Application is **PZ-2022-09.** The Applicant is Carol Yeomans, 155 East Road, requesting a Subdivision Permit for 1 new residential lot. Map 90, Block 79, Lot 1. Zone R-3. A full copy of the application is available on the Planning and Zoning Commission's Webpage on the Town's Website. All interested persons may attend this meeting and provide verbal or written comments regarding this application.

The Notice was published in the Journal Inquirer on June 24th and July 1st.

Chairman Gobin acknowledged the *third* Legal Notice:

The East Windsor Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, July 12, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. Details on how to attend will be published on the Commission's Agenda and will be made available on the Town's website.

The Application is **PZ-2022-10.** The Applicant is Carol Yeomans, East Road and Reservoir. Requesting a Re-subdivision Permit for 3 residential lots. Map 90, Block 57, Lot 16. Zone R-3. A full copy of the application

	Meeti	ng ID:	conference 714 897 1799 MINUTES	
131				
132				n the Planning and Zoning Commission's Webpage on the
133				site. All interested persons may attend this meeting and
134			provide verba	al or written comments regarding this application.
135				
136 137			The Notice w July 1 st . 2022	ras published in the Journal Inquirer on June 24 ^{th,} 2022, and
138			July 1 . 2022	•
139 140	V.	<u>PUBI</u>	LIC PARTICI	PATION:
141		Chair	man Gabin aya	ried the members of the in-person audience for comments
142				es not posted on the Agenda. No one requested to speak.
143				n offered the remote participants the same opportunity for
144				one requested to be acknowledged.
145		puone	comments, no	one requested to be deknowledged.
146	VI.	APPE	ROVAL OF M	INITES:
147	V 2.	1111	to vile of ivi	THO TEST
148		a.	June 28, 202	2 – Regular Meeting of PZC:
149			00-110 10, 101	
150			Chairman Go	bin noted the availability of the Minutes for the
151				s Regular Meeting #1829 held on June 28, 2022. She
152				ommission for revisions or edits; no one requested any
153			changes.	, , ,
154			<i>α</i> : <i>α</i>	
155			Chairman Go	bin called for a motion of approval.
156			MOTION.	To ADDDOVE the Deculer Meeting Minutes of Meeting
157 158			MOTION:	To APPROVE the Regular Meeting Minutes of Meeting
159				#1829 dated June 28, 2022 as presented.
160			Kowolski me	oved/Thurz seconded/ <u>DISCUSSION:</u> None.
161			VOTE:	In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz
162			VOIE.	(No one opposed/No Abstentions)
163				(140 one opposed/140 Abstentions)
164	VII.	DECI	EIPT OF APP	I ICATIONS:
165	V 11.	KECI	EII I OF ALL	<u>LICATIONS.</u>
166		Chair	man Gobin note	ed the receipt of the following applications, which will be
167			at a future mee	2 11
168		nearu	at a future file	ang.
169		a.	PZ-2022-14	- Text Amendment - Tiny Homes. Applicant: Lucy
170		u.	<u>Foster:</u>	reactiment injudies, applicant, Lucy
170			I USICI .	

TOWN OF EAST WINDSOR

In-Person and

172

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Regular Meeting #1830 – July 12, 2022

TOWN OF EAST WINDSOR
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting #1830 – July 12, 2022
In-Person and
ZOOM Teleconference
Meeting ID: 714 897 1799
MEETING MINUTES

Chairman Gobin noted this is a request for a Text Amendment regarding Tiny Homes submitted by Lucy Foster.

b. PZ-2022-15 – Text Amendment – Applicant: Town of East Windsor:

Chairman Gobin noted receipt of an application to existing regulations initiated by Staff.

Chairman Gobin acknowledged receipt of application <u>PZ-2022-16 – for a 3-lot subdivision for 137 Scantic Road. The owner/applicant is Travis W. Neidlinger.</u>

VIII. <u>PERFORMANCE BONDS – ACTIONS; PERMIT EXTENSIONS; ROAD ACCEPTANCE</u>

No requests presented under this Item of Business this evening.

IX. <u>CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARINGS:</u> None.

X. <u>NEW PUBLIC HEARINGS:</u>

a. <u>PZ-2022-09 155 East Road – Re-Subdivision Application – fpr 1 New Residential Lot. Applicant: Carol Yeomans:</u>

See discussion below under revised Agenda order.

b. <u>PZ-2022-10 East Rd & Reservoir – Re-Subdivision Application for 3</u> <u>Residential Lots. Applicant: Carol Yeomans:</u>

See discussion below under revised Agenda order.

c. <u>PZ-2022-12 148 North Rd Unit #4 – Special Use Permit: Tattoo</u> Salon. Applicant: Jerome Swanson.

Following the request for revision of the Public Hearing order Chairman Gobin read the description of this Agenda Item. She queried the inperson audience for someone to give a presentation of this application. No one came forward to offer a presentation or discuss the proposed use. Chairman Gobin queried the remote participants for anyone to make a presentation for this application; no one requested to be acknowledged.

215216

217

218

219220

221222

Chairman Gobin noted the Commission has a Staff memo regarding this application, she questioned if the Commission would consider closing the Public Hearing and acting on the Staff memo, or would the Commission prefer to postpone this Public Hearing. Commissioner Kowalski suggested postponing the Public Hearing to the Commission's next meeting to give the applicant an opportunity to appear before the Commission, the other Commissioners concurred.

223224225

226

227

MOTION: To POSTPONE the Public Hearing for Application PZ-2022-12 148 North Rd Unit #4 – Special Use Permit: Tattoo Salon. Applicant: Jerome Swanson until the Commission's next regularly scheduled Meeting to be held on July 26, 2022.

228229230

231

Kowalski moved/Thurz seconded/<u>DISCUSSION:</u> None
VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz
(No one opposed/No Abstentions)

232233234

Chairman Gobin then moved to **NEW PUBLIC HEARING, Item a.**

235236

a. <u>PZ-2022-09 155 East Road – Re-Subdivision Application – for 1 New Residential Lot. Applicant: Carol Yeomans:</u>

237238239

Chairman Gobin noted this is the first of two applications for Carol Yeomans. She read the Application description, and asked the applicant's representative to come forward and make a presentation.

240241242

243

Mark Peterson, of Gardner and Peterson and Associates joined the Commission in person, noting he was representing the Yeomans family.

244245246

247

248

249

Chairman Gobin reviewed the process for the Commission to hear an application presented under a Public Hearing, which includes the applicant's process for their presentation, public input for or against the proposed project, and the Commission's deliberations prior to making a decision.

250251252

253

Mr. Peterson introduced himself to the Commission and audience. He noted the file record should include a copy of the Certificate of Mailings to abutters, and the affidavit for posting the sign.

Mr. Peterson noted the application is for a one lot resubdivision at 155 East Road, Mr. Peterson referenced a Site Plan noting the location of the proposed resubdivision at the intersection of Reservoir Avenue and the east side of East Road. The lot, which would contain 0.69 acres, is being created south of the existing home. It has 150 feet of road frontage and meets the requirements for a lot located in an R-3 Zone.

Mr. Petersen then referenced a third page of the plan set containing topography information. Mr. Peterson noted there are no wetlands on the site. He noted the plan references the 4 bedroom home on the northwest corner of the property, two existing barns and a well. The North Central Health District witnessed the testing for the well and septic system but results remain pending.

Mr. Peterson referenced comments from Town Engineer Norton regarding the waste water treatment system for the well. Mr. Peterson suggested the results of those tests would apply after approval of the resubdivision by this Commission. Mr. Peterson suggested Town Engineer Norton's second comment didn't relate to the new lot being created.

Mr. Peterson indicated the applicant requests waivers for a \$2,000 Fee-In-Lieu of Open Space for the new lot, and a waiver for a Fee-In-Lieu of sidewalks as well as there are no sidewalks on East Road. The applicant is requesting a waiver of street lights as there are no street lights in the area, and, Mr. Peterson indicated he is requesting to add an additional waiver tonight for the agricultural zone, as they are proposing to add a row of evergreen trees along the rear of lot 1. Mr. Peterson noted the plans include Erosion and Sedimentation Controls as well.

Chairman Gobin opened discussion to the Commissioners.

Commissioner Kowalski noted that the agricultural buffer is usually established so a potential homeowner doesn't have agricultural activity close to their property. By waiving that requirement it would need to be noted on the deed so a potential homeowner would know there could be agricultural activity near their home. Planning Director Calabrese noted she's included language in Condition 4(e) which addresses that issue should the Commission grant the waiver.

Chairman Gobin requested clarification of the property location, noting she was unaware of that Reservoir Road continued past East Road.

Commissioner Sauerhoefer noted there is an unimproved section of Reservoir Road, which is considered a Town Road, which continues past the home at 155 East Road.

Chairman Gobin offered members of the in-person audience an opportunity to comment on the application.

Mrs. Carol Yeomans, owner of 155 East Road, referenced the request for the waiver of the trees. She noted her daughter owns a lot to south of Mrs. Yeomans which currently has tobacco on it. Mrs. Yeomans suggested the lot being discussed is between the daughter's house and Mrs. Yeomans house, she suggested adding a line of trees will affect the tobacco for awhile. Commissioner Kowalski suggested that the Commission usually looks at these applications without considering the ownership.

Chairman Gobin called for any additional comments from the in-person audience, and then offered the same opportunity to the remote participants. No one requested to be acknowledged.

Commissioner Sauerhoefer requested clarification of waiving the evergreen buffer. Planning Consultant D'Amato suggested the evergreens are an interim solution of the 100 foot buffer that the regulations require. Based on Planning Director Calabrese's proposed motion there would be a note on the plans indicating there's an active farming operation next to the new lot. Commissioner Kowalski questioned if the regulations require the buffer strip for screening; Planning Director Calabrese read an excerpt from the regulations. It was noted the trees would be along the rear property line.

Discussion continued regarding revision of language to address the transfer of the property outside of the family, and the application of the agricultural buffer. Planning Consultant D'Amato suggested Section 7.6(1), Open Space, requires a separate notice being placed on the Land Records that would prevent the transfer within the time frame for no consideration of the Open Space Fee. He suggested the fee isn't being eliminated, the responsibility for a fee is just being deferred if they sell the property outside the family.

The Commission considered options for action on this application, PZ-2022-09.

Chairman Gobin queried the in-person audience for additional comments, no one requested to address the Commission. Chairman Gobin then offered the remote participants the opportunity to comment, no one requested to be acknowledged.

Chairman Gobin asked if the Commission was comfortable closing this Public Hearing, and moving on to discussion of the second application for Carol Yeomans, PZ-2022-10?

MOTION: To CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING on PZ-2022-09 for a Re-Subdivision Application at 155 East Road, Map 90, Block 79, Lot 1. Owner/Applicant: Carol Yeomans

Kowalski moved/Leason seconded/<u>DISCUSSION:</u> None
VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz
(No one opposed/No Abstentions)

Chairman Gobin noted the Public Hearing is closed, the Commission can only work with Staff, who will redraft the potential approval motion.

b. <u>PZ-2022-10 East Rd & Reservoir – Re-Subivision Application for 3</u> <u>Residential Lots. Applicant: Carol Yeomans:</u>

Chairman Gobin read the description of this application, and asked Mr Peterson to give the Commission a overview.

Mr. Peterson noted he has submitted the Certified Mailing receipt of notification to abutters, and the affidavit for posting the sign on this application as well.

Mr. Peterson reported this property is across the street from the previous application. This parcel contains 3.75 acres which are proposed to be subdivided into 3 residential building lots of approximately 1 ¼ acres each with 150 feet of road frontage. This application requires testing and approval from the North Central Health District as well. The plans include Erosion and Sedimentation controls, including the installation of silt fence.

Mr. Peterson reported they are asking for a waiver for the Fee-In-Lieu of Open Space on the southerly lot (lot 3). Additional waivers are being requested for sidewalks, street lights and the agricultural buffer. Mr. Peterson suggested the difference with this application is the tree line is on the southwest corner of the southerly lot (lot 3); the tree line continues behind lot 1 and 2 off this property onto adjacent property owned by Andre Groszyk. Chairman Gobin requested clarification of who ows the tree line? Mr. Peterson suggested the southerly corner is on the Yeomans property and the land to the north and west is on property owned by Andre Groszyk. Commissioner Kowalski questioned that Mr. Groszyk isn't obligated to provide a buffer? Mr. Peterson replied affirmatively, noting the Yeomans are asking for a waiver of the buffer behind lots 1 and 2 (which are being offered for sale), as well as waivers for street trees.

Mr. Peterson noted this application is waiting for approval from the North Central Health District as well.

Discussion continued amongst the Commission members and Staff regarding modification of the approval conditions.

Chairman Gobin asked if any of the in-person public would like to comment on the application; no one requested to speak. Chairman Gobin also offered the same opportunity to the remote participants; no one requested to be acknowledged.

Chairman Gobin cited the Commission has input from Staff and Mr. Peterson on behalf of the applicant, and the public has had an opportunity to comment. If the Commission is satisfied she suggested the Public Hearing on application PZ-2022-10 could be closed.

MOTION: To CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING on PZ-2022-10 for a 3 lot Subdivision application. Map 90, Block 57, Lot 16 on East Road. Applicant is Carol Yeomans

Kowalski moved/Thurz seconded/DISCUSSION: None

417 VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz
418 (No one opposed/No Abstentions)

Chairman Gobin asked if the Commission was ready to move on approval motions. The Commissioners offered the following

MEETING MINUTES

motions, beginning with votes on the waivers requested.

MOTION TO APPROVE:

Request for a waiver to Section 6.5 of the East Windsor Subdivision Regulations pertaining to the installation of streetlights for application #PZ 2022-10: Re-Subdivision Application. Map 090 Block 79 Lot 01, 155 East Road; Applicant/Owner: Carol Yeomans

Findings:

1. There are no streetlights on East Road from Windsorville Road to Melrose Road.

Kowalski moved/Thurz seconded/DISCUSSION: None

VOTE:

OTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz

(No one opposed/No Abstentions)

MOTION:

To APPROVE the request for waiver of Section 7.5 Fee-In-Lieu of Open Space for Section 7.6.1 of the East Windsor Subdivision Regulations pertaining to exemptions from Open Space requirements for Application PZ-2022-10. Resubdivision Application. Map 90, Block 79, Lot 01 for 155 East Road. Applicant/Owner: Carol Yeomans. The Finding is the applicant intends to transfer the property in question

within the family. If the property is transferred within

5 years a Fee-in-Lieu of Open Space will apply.

Chairman Gobin questioned the application number. Commissioner Kowalski amended his motion to reference Application PZ-2022-09, Commissioner Leason seconded the amendment.

AMENDED MOTION:

To APPROVE the request for waiver of Section 7.5 Fee-In-Lieu of Open Space for Section 7.6.1 of the East Windsor Subdivision Regulations pertaining to exemptions from Open Space requirements for Application PZ-2022-09. Resubdivision application. Map 90, Block 79, Lot 01 for East Road and Reservoir Avenue. Applicant/Owner: Carol Yeomans. The Finding is the applicant intends to transfer the property in question within the family. If the

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION **Regular Meeting #1830 – July 12, 2022** In-Person and **ZOOM Teleconference** Meeting ID: 714 897 1799 **MEETING MINUTES** property is transferred within 5 years a Fee-in-Lieu of Open Space will apply. Kowalski moved/Leason seconded/DISCUSSION: None In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz VOTE: (No one opposed/No Abstentions) Chairman Gobin clarified the Commission was still considering waivers for Application PZ-2022-09. **MOTION:** To APPROVE application PZ-2022-09 for Subdivision application for 155 East Road Map 90, Block 79, Lot 1, East Road. Owner/Applicant is Carol Yeomans. In accordance with Findings 1, 2, and 3 and Conditions 1 through 10 on the first page, Conditions 11 through 19 on the second page, amending Condition 4.F to read - "to include a row of evergreen trees to screen the adjacent farm operations to be planted in the event of a non-familial transfer." See memo from Ruth Calabrese, Director of Planning and Development, dated July 7, 2022. Kowalski moved/Thurz seconded/<u>DISCUSSION:</u> None In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz VOTE: (No one opposed/No Abstentions) See Staff approval motion below: **MOTION TO APPROVE:** #PZ 2022-09: Resubdivision Application 155 East Road. Map 090 Block 79 Lot 01, East Road; Owner/Applicant: Carol Yeomans This approval is granted subject to the conformance with referenced plans (as may be modified by the Commission) and the following additional conditions/modifications.

501 **Referenced Plans:**

TOWN OF EAST WINDSOR

464 465

466

467 468

469

470

471 472 473

474

475 476

477

478

479 480

481

482

483

484

485

486 487

488

489

490 491

492 493

494

495

496 497

498

499 500

505 506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

Subdivision Plan Land of Carol S. Yeomans; East Road 155 East Windsor, Connecticut prepared by Gardner& Peterson Associates, LLC; Sheets 1-4 dated 05-24-2022

Findings:

- 1. The provided plan is compliant with the Town's Zoning and Subdivision Regulations.
- 2. It is appropriate to grant the applicant's request for a waiver to the requirement for streetlights.
- 3. The Commission finds that a fee in lieu is more appropriate than the installation of sidewalks on site.

515516517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525

526

527

528

529

530

531532

533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

542

543

544

545

546

Conditions which must be met prior to signing mylars:

- 1. A copy of the final approved plans with revisions shall be submitted to the Planning & Development
 - Office for review and comment.
- 2. All final plans submitted for signature shall require the seal and live signature of the appropriate professional(s) responsible for the preparation of the plans.
- 3. The exemption from the open space requirements shall be noted on the final mylars along with a notice stating that any lot subject to the waiver shall be liable for its proportional share of the total open space fee at the time of subsequent sale or transfer to a non-exempt person if that lot is sold or transferred within five years of the approval date.

4. The plans shall be modified to include:

- a. A notation indicating that any lot subject to the open space waiver shall be liable for its proportional share of the total open space fee at the time of subsequent sale or transfer to a non-exempt person if that lot is sold or transferred within five years of the approval date.
- b. A copy of this approval
- c. The expiration date of this approval
- **d.** To indicate one (1) street tree on the lot
- e. To include the following note: "This property abuts or is in proximity of an active agricultural or farming operation 7 which is a permitted zoning use and protected in accordance with Section 19a 341(a) of the Connecticut General Statutes. Agricultural operations sometimes emit noise, run-off, odor, dust, or chemical spray drift during either the day or night that may be annoying or irritants to some people".
- f. To include a row of evergreen trees to screen the adjacent farming operations to be planted in the event of a nonfamilial transfer.
- g. Modify title block on the plan set to change the term Subdivision to

Resubdivision.

Conditions which must be met prior to the issuance of any permits:

- The final mylars with signature shall be filed in the Town Clerk's office and digital PDF shall be provided to the Planning and Development office.
- A road cut/excavation permit shall be obtained from the Department of Public Works.
- An Erosion and Sedimentation Control bond shall be provided in a format acceptable to the Town of East Windsor to the Planning & Development Office. Such bond amount shall be determined by the Town Engineer.
- 8 The applicant shall and adhere to the Town's Development Agreement subject to final approval by the Board of Selectmen unless otherwise determined to be not applicable by Town staff based on the improvements (or lack thereof) proposed.
- 9 A fee in lieu of the installation of sidewalks shall be provided. The final amount shall be in accordance with Section 6.3(5) and approved by the Town Engineer.
- An appraisal, prepared in accordance with Section 7.5(1) shall be provided to the Planning & Development Office for the purposes of designating the open space fee per lot.

<u>Conditions which must be met prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy:</u>

- Occupancy 11 A ro
 - 11 A road cut/excavation permit shall be obtained from the Department of Public Works.
 - An Erosion and Sedimentation Control bond shall be provided in a format acceptable to the Town of East Windsor to the Planning & Development Office. Such bond amount shall be determined by the Town Engineer.
 - The applicant shall and adhere to the Town's Development Agreement subject to final approval by the Board of Selectmen unless otherwise determined to be not applicable by Town staff based on the improvements (or lack thereof) proposed.
 - A fee in lieu of the installation of sidewalks shall be provided. The final amount shall be in accordance with Section 6.3(5) and approved by the Town Engineer.

General Conditions:

TOWN OF EAST WINDSOR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION Regular Meeting #1830 – July 12, 2022 In-Person and ZOOM Teleconference

Meeting ID: 714 897 1799 MEETING MINUTES

589	
590	

- The conditions of this approval shall be binding upon the applicant, landowners, and their successors and assigns.
 - Additional Erosion and Sedimentation controls may be required by Town staff as onsite conditions necessitate.
 - Any modifications to utilities, easements or grading are subject to approval by the Town Engineer.
 - This project shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with the final mylars. Minor modifications to the approved plans that result in lesser impacts may be allowed, subject to staff approval.
 - By accepting this approval and its conditions, the applicant, owner and/or their successors and assigns acknowledge that right of Town staff to periodically enter upon the subject property for the purpose of determining compliance with the terms of this approval.

Kowalski moved/Thurz seconded/DISCUSSION: None

VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz (No one opposed/No Abstentions)

Chairman Gobin then referenced Application PZ-2022-10 which is the 3 lot residential application.

 MOTION: To APPROVE the request for a waiver of Section 6.5 of the East Windsor Subdivision Regulations for the installation of street lights for application PZ-2022-10 Resubdivision application Map 90, Block 16, Lot 16, East Road.

Applicant/Owner: Carol Yeomans. With the Finding "there are no streetlights on East Road from Windsorville Road to

Kowalski moved/Leason

Kowalski moved/Leason seconded/<u>DISCUSSION:</u> None

Melrose Road.

VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz (No one opposed/No Abstentions)

MOTION: To APPROVE the request for waiver on lot 3 Section 7.5 Fee-In-Lieu of Open Space for Section 7.6.1 of the East Windsor Subdivision Regulations pertaining to exemptions from Open Space requirements for Application PZ-2022-10.

Resubdivision Application. Map 90, Block 79, Lot 01 for 155 East Road. Applicant/Owner: Carol Yeomans. The Finding

is the applicant intends to transfer the property in question

631 632

within the family. If the property is transferred within 5 years a Fee-in-Lieu of Open Space will apply.

633 634 635

Kowalski moved/Thurz seconded/<u>DISCUSSION:</u> None

636 **VOTE**:

In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz

(No one opposed/No Abstentions)

638 639

640

641

642

MOTION TO APPROVE:

Request for a waiver to Section 2.17 of the East Windsor Subdivision Regulations pertaining to the 100-foot agricultural vegetated buffer for application #PZ 2022-10: Re-Subdivision Application. Map 090 Block 57 Lot 016, East Road; Applicant/Owner: Carol Yeomans

643 644 645

Findings:

1. The waiver is granted finding that the intensity of the farming activity does not warrant the full buffer.

647 648 649

646

Kowalski moved/Thurz seconded/DISCUSSION: None

VOTE:

In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz

(No one opposed/No Abstentions)

651 652

655 656

657

658

659

660

661

662 663

664

653 **MOTION:** 654

To APPROVE PZ-2022-10 for a 3 lot Resubdivision application for Map 90, Block 57, Lot 16, East Road. Owner/Applicant: Carol Yeomans. This approval is granted subject to the conformance to the referenced plans as may be modified by the Commission and following additional conditions for modification. On the referenced plans we have 4 Findings which must be met prior to signing mylars. We have Conditions 1 through 11 on the first page and Conditions 12 through 19 on the second page, with the modification of Condition 4f to read..."include a row of evergreen trees to screen the adjacent farming operation on Lot 1 and 2, on Lot 3 upon a non-familial transfer." This motion is referenced on a memo from Ruthanne Calabrese, Director of Planning and Development dated July 7, 2022.

670

671

Kowalski moved/Leason seconded/<u>DISCUSSION:</u> None

VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz

(No one opposed/No Abstentions)

See Staff approval motion below:

MOTION TO APPROVE:

#PZ 2022-10: 3-lot Re-Subdivision Application. Map 090 Block 57 Lot 016, East Road; Owners/Applicant: Carol Yeomans

This approval is granted subject to the conformance with referenced plans (as may be modified by the Commission) and the following additional conditions/modifications

Referenced Plans:

Subdivision Plan Land of Carol S. Yeomans; East Road East Windsor, Connecticut prepared by Gardner & Peterson Associates, LLC; Sheets 1-3 dated 05-25-2022

Findings:

- 1. The provided plan is compliant with the Town's Zoning and Subdivision Regulations.
- 2. The Inland Wetlands and Watercourses granted an Agent Decision on June 14, 2022.
- 3. It is appropriate to grant the applicant's request for a waiver to the requirement for streetlights.
- 4. The Commission finds that a fee in lieu is more appropriate than the installation of sidewalks on site.

Conditions which must be met prior to signing mylars:

- 1. A copy of the final approved plans with revisions shall be submitted to the Planning & Development Office for review and comment.
- 2. All final plans submitted for signature shall require the seal and live signature of the appropriate professional(s) responsible for the preparation of the plans.
- 3. The exemption from the open space requirements shall be noted on the final mylars along with a notice stating that any lot subject to the waiver shall be liable for its proportional share of the total open space fee at the time of subsequent sale or transfer to a non-exempt person if that lot is sold or transferred within five years of the approval date.

4. The plans shall be modified to include:

a. notation indicating that any lot subject to the open space waiver shall be liable for its proportional share of the total open space fee at the time of subsequent

MEETING MINUTES

715

756

716 sale or transfer to a non-exempt person if that lot is 717 sold or transferred within five years of the approval 718 date. 719 A copy of this approval b. 720 the expiration date of this approval c. 721 To indicate one (1) street tree per lot d To include the following note: "This property abuts or 722 e. 723 is in proximity of an active agricultural or farming 724 operation - 7 - which is a permitted zoning use and 725 protected in accordance with Section 19a -341(a) of 726 the Connecticut General Statutes. Agricultural 727 operations sometimes emit noise, run-off, odor, dust, 728 or chemical spray drift during either the day or night 729 that may be annoying or irritants to some people". 730 To include a row of evergreen trees to screen the f. 731 adjacent farming operations on lots 1 & 2 and on lot 3 732 upon a nonfamilial transfer. 733 Modify title block on the plan set to change the term g. 734 Subdivision to ReSubdivision. 735 736 Conditions which must be met prior to the issuance of any 737 permits: 738 739 5 The final mylars with signature shall be filed in the Town 740 Clerk's office and digital PDF shall be provided to the 741 Planning and Development office. 742 A road cut/excavation permit shall be obtained from the 6 743 Department of Public Works. 744 7. An Erosion and Sedimentation Control bond shall be provided in a 745 format acceptable to the Town of East Windsor to the Planning & 746 Development Office. Such bond amount shall be determined by the Town Engineer. 747 748 The applicant shall and adhere to the Town's Development 8. 749 Agreement subject to final approval by the Board of Selectmen 750 unless otherwise determined to be not applicable by Town staff 751 based on the improvements (or lack thereof) proposed. 752 9. A fee in lieu of the installation of sidewalks shall be provided. 753 The final amount shall be in accordance with Section 6.3(5) 754 and approved by the Town Engineer. 755 10. An appraisal, prepared in accordance with Section 7.5(1) shall

be provided to the Planning & Development Office for the

purposes of designating the open space fee per lot.

Conditions which must be met prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy:

11. Final grading and seeding shall be in place or a bond for the unfinished or unestablished work shall be submitted.

12, A final as built survey, showing all structures, pins, driveways and final floor elevations as well as spot grades shall be submitted.

13. All public health and safety components of the project must be satisfactorily completed prior to occupancy. In cases where all of these components have not been completed, the Zoning Enforcement Officer may issue a Certificate of Zoning Compliance provided a suitable bond is retained for any remaining site work.

14. A fee in lieu of open space shall be provided. Such fee shall be determined and paid in accordance with Section 7.5 of the East Windsor Subdivision Regulations and CGS 8-25, subject to final approval by the Planning & Development Director and Assessor.

General Conditions:

 15. The conditions of this approval shall be binding upon the applicant, landowners, and their successors and assigns.

 16. Additional Erosion and Sedimentation controls may be required by Town staff as onsite conditions necessitate.

 17. Any modifications to utilities, easements or grading are subject to approval by the Town Engineer.

 18. This project shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with the final mylars. Minor modifications to the approved plans that result in lesser impacts may be allowed, subject to staff approval.

19. By accepting this approval and its conditions, the applicant, owner and/or their successors and assigns acknowledge that right of Town staff to periodically enter upon the subject property for the purpose of determining compliance with the terms of this approval.

Kowalski moved/Leason seconded/<u>DISCUSSION:</u> None VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz

(No one opposed/No Abstentions)

XI. OLD BUSINESS:

a. PZ-2022-08 20 Thompson Rd – Site Plan Modification – Koma
Precision is proposing a 10,000 square foot building warehouse
addition. The addition will be attached to the existing building on the
east side. A new loading dock will be located on the south side of the
addition. Additional car parking and an outdoor gravel storage area
are also proposed. Applicant: William Meo (Tabled until 7/26/2022):

Chairman Gobin noted this application has been tabled until the Commission's July 26th meeting.

XII. <u>NEW BUSINESS:</u>

a. PZ-2022-13 16 Shoham Road. Site Plan Modification. Construction of an 11,000 square foot building addition for maintenance bays.

Applicant: USA Hauling & Recycling Inc.:

Chairman Gobin read the description of this Agenda Item.

Tim Coon, Professional Engineer with J. R. Russo & Associates, LLC joined the Commission to describe the proposed addition to an existing building located at 16 Shoham Road.

Mr. Coon reported the location of this building is at the southwest end of Shoham Road. The property is zoned Industrial and currently contains a 13,456 square foot building, which provides office space and maintenance bays. Tonight's application is for an 11,000 square foot addition shown as the shaded area on this Site Plan. The addition is for maintenance bays and is located within an area which is already impervious. While they will be adding a small amount of impervious coverage to access the back of the building they will also be removing some impervious area so there is actually a reduction in the amount of impervious coverage on the site. They will be doing some grading in the back to accommodate the loading docks, and will be adding a new catch basin to address drainage changes. There will be floor drains inside the addition which will be connected to a stormwater management system south of the building which will be connected to the sanitary sewer. The existing 47 parking spaces meets the parking requirements under the current regulations.

Commissioner Thurz cited past issues with the neighbors at the end of the road, he questioned if anyone has come in with complaints since USA Hauling put up the fence? Mr. Coon replied there have not been any recent complaints.

Commissioner Kowalski questioned if any additional site lighting would be installed? Mr. Coon replied negatively, noting only wall packs would be installed on the building.

 Chairman Gobin noted responses appear to be outstanding from the Fire Marshal, the WPCA, and the North Central Health District. Mr. Coon indicated they have not had a response from the Fire Marshal but they are maintaining access all around the building. Mr. Coon suggested the WPCA is considering whether any revisions are necessary for the addition as it's not generating any additional use. Mr. Coon indicated he didn't expect any comments from The North Central Health Department.

Chairman Gobin asked for questions from the Commissioners, no one raised any additional questions. Chairman Gobin called for a motion to approve the application.

MOTION:

To approve application PZ-2022-8 Site Plan Modification for 16 Shoham Road, USA Hauling and Recycling. This approval is grant subject to conformance with the referenced plans which may be modified by the Commission in its approval, with the following conditions 1 through 14 listed on a memo from Ruthanne Calabrese, Town Planner, dated July 6, 2022.

Kowalski moved/Leason seconded/<u>DISCUSSION:</u> None.

VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/
Sauerhoefer/Thurz

(No one opposed/No abstentions)

See Staff approval motion below:

MOTION TO APPROVE:

Application #PZ 2022-08: Site Plan Modification – 16 Shoham Road -USA Hauling & Recycling. This approval is granted subject to the conformance with referenced plans (as may be

MEETING MINUTES

modified by the Commission and this approval) and the following conditions/modifications.

Referenced Plans

 This approval is granted subject to the conformance with the plan set entitled: Building Addition USA Hauling & Recycling, Inc. 16 Shoham Road East Windsor, Connecticut; Map 113 Block 17 Lot 003; Zone:M-1 Site Plan; prepared by Jr Russo & Associates, LLC; sheets 1-2; dated: 6-16-22

Conditions which must be met prior to the signing of final plan set:

1. A copy of the final approved plans with any necessary revisions shall be submitted to the Planning & Development Office for review and comment.

2. A copy of this approval motion has been incorporated into a final plan.

 3. All final plans submitted for signature shall require the seal and live signature of the appropriate professional(s) responsible for the preparation of the plans.

 4. The conditions of this approval shall be binding upon the applicant, landowners, and their successors and assigns

Conditions which must be met prior to the issuance of any permits:

5. A single, PDF copy of the final plans, will all necessary revisions shall be provided to the Planning & Development Office.

 6. A zoning permit has been obtained from the Planning and Development Office for the project.

 7. An Erosion Control Bond has been provided, such estimate shall be reviewed and approved by the Town Engineer.

<u>Conditions which must be met prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Compliance:</u>

8. Final grading, stabilization and seeding shall be in place or adequate bond filed with the Town for the unfinished work.

 9. One electronic PDF and paper copy of the final as-built survey showing structures, pins, driveways, final floor elevations and spot grades shall be submitted

General Conditions:

- 10. In accordance with Section 900.3(h) of the Zoning Regulations, the construction of any buildings associated with this approval shall commence within one year of this approval date and all improvements shall be completed within five years. Such approval shall otherwise be null and void unless an extension has been granted by the Commission.
- **11.** This project shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with the final plans. Minor modifications to the approved plans that result in lesser impacts may be allowed subject to staff review and approval.
- **12.** Any modifications to the proposed drainage or grading as depicted on the site plan are subject to review and approval by the Town Engineer.
- **13.** Additional erosion control measures may be required by Town staff if field conditions necessitate.
- 14.By acceptance of this approval and its conditions, the applicant, owner and/or their successors and assigns acknowledge the right of Town staff to periodically enter upon the subject property for the purpose of determining compliance with the terms of this approval.

Kowalski moved/Leason seconded/<u>DISCUSSION:</u>
None
VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Sauerhoefer/Thurz
(No one opposed/No Abstentions)

XIII. OTHER BUSINESS: None

XIV. CORRESPONDENCE:

a. <u>Notification from the Connecticut Water Company, Stafford</u> Interconnection:

Planning Director Calabrese advised the Commission of the receipt of notification from the Connecticut Water Company regarding their intent to provide water to a project in Stafford Springs. Their proposal is to provide 100% of the water for the Stafford project from the wells in East Windsor.

XV. <u>BUSINESS MEETING</u>

a. <u>Discuss the Community Investment Fund and a grant application for a new Community Center at Scout Hall:</u>

First Selectman Bowsza joined the Commission remotely. First Selectman Bowsza advised the Commission of the collaboration between the Board of Selectmen and the Scout Hall Building Committee to build an 8,000

square foot addition to the Scout Hall building on Abbe Road. He noted they've come to terms regarding lease control of the building and have developed a Memorandum of Understanding. First Selectman Bowsza thanked the Commission for adding him to the Agenda this evening, as he wanted to update the Commission on status of the Community Center project, and seek their support.

First Selectman Bowsza reported he and others have been considering for some time how to provide the best services in the Community Services space. They considered other properties/locations, including Solnit North, the Broad Brook Mill, new construction on the Kogut property, acquiring the military property on Phelps Road, acquiring the old Chestnut Point property, and building an addition to the Town Hall Annex, and the most feasible solution is to build an 8,000 square foot addition to Scout Hall. The addition will put a 30 foot "ring" around the entire Scout Hall building which will include a 6 foot hallway within the new addition and provide 24 feet of programing space in all directions around the existing building which will provide space for Community Services (Social Services, Senior Services and Park and Recreation), and provide one location for residents seeking various Government assistance programs, such as renters rebate or Medicare or Medicaid or food stamps. First Selectman Bowsza noted that currently people seeking those services must visit the Senior Center or the Annex or both locations.

First Selectman Bowsza noted the Town recognizes that East Windsor's population is 10% older than the population in Hartford County. For some time Staff has been considering how to shift the focus for the delivery of those services to where the needs will be. The Scout Hall Building Committee has a 99 year lease for the Scout Hall building which they have agreed to relinquish assuming funding can be acquired to improve/expand the Scout Hall building. The Board of Finance has taken \$1.2 million from the last Fiscal Year and moved it to the Capital Non-Recurring Fund to offset the \$5 million cost of this project. First Selectman Bowsza noted that Windsor Locks is doing a similar project for a 19,000 square foot Senior Center only at a cost of \$14 million. East Windsor will be building a multi-generational facility for \$5 million. The difference for East Windsor is the Town already owns the building and the property, and most of the infrastructure is already there.

First Selectman Bowsza reported the total cost for this new Community Center is \$5 million, the Board of Finance has already moved 25% of that

cost into the Capital Non-Recurring Fund. Options for acquiring the balance include Congressionally Directed Spending, which is the new buzzword for Federal earmarked spending. First Selectman Bowsza noted he applied for 4 projects under this funding, after discussions with Senator Murphy's Office regarding prospects for acquiring funding for the 4 projects he was advised funding for the Community Center falls under the USDA Appropriations Subcommittee for community facilities. In order to be considered for that funding you need to be in a municipality below a population threshold and be proposing a qualifying project—which is the Community Center. Should we be awarded the Congressionally Directed Spending they would fund 55% of the project, which would equate to \$2.8 million. That funding, plus the \$1.2 million from last year's surplus means \$4 million of the total \$5 million project would be funded, and East Windsor would be getting its multi-use facility for one-quarter of the cost of the Windsor Locks Senior Center.

First Selectman Bowsza noted another option is a State program funded through the State's appropriations for the American Rescue Plan Act called the Community Investment Fund (CIF), which could conceivably fund the balance of the Community Center project. East Windsor is one of 54 towns in the State eligible to apply for the CIF funding. The State will be doing 10 rounds of funding over the next 5 years. First Selectman Bowsza feels if East Windsor doesn't acquire the State funding this year the opportunity will have passed us by because this is a Gubernatorial election year which generally means a high voter turnout. First Selectman Bowsza believes that major community decisions should be made by high turnout elections. Authorizing up to \$3.8 million for bonding for completion of this \$5 million project will be a ballot question for East Windsor voters in November.

First Selectman Bowsza suggested if the Town doesn't receive funding under the sources previously discussed we could finance the remainder of the project locally. While \$3.8 million is a lot of money for East Windsor residents First Selectman Bowsza noted that two years ago the Town did an added appropriation for \$3.5 million to pay off existing debt. That freed up \$10 million of bond capacity in the Town's operating budget without having to increase the debt service line. The Town could now spend the \$3.8 million to build the Community Center without having to increase the debt service for the Town.

 $\begin{array}{c} 1051 \\ 1052 \end{array}$

1054 1055

1056

1057

1058

1059

1060 1061

1062

1063 1064

1065 1066

1067

1068 1069

1070

1071

1072

1073

1074

First Selectman Bowsza advised the Commission that the Board of Selectman approved the Community Center project and the Scout Hall Lease Agreement and the Resolution last Thursday, the Board of Finance is taking action tomorrow, which leaves the Town with the Town Meeting and the ballot vote in November. He reported the CIF application is due July 25th, authorization of First Selectman Bowsza's signation to apply for the CIF grant at the Town Meeting, which will occur next Thursday. The Board of Selectmen are holding a Special Meeting tomorrow to authorize the Town Meeting. First Selectman Bowsza indicated at some point this project and its funding will be a PZC issue so he wanted to update the Commission. First Selectman Bowsza noted Commissioner Sauerhoefer has been working on this project from the beginning, and Director of Planning Calabrese and Planning Consultant D'Amato have been involved as well. First Selectman Bowsza offered Staff an opportunity to add comments. Commissioner Sauerhoefer indicated he had no additions to First Selectman Bowsza's comments. Director of Planning Calabrese suggested to have these funding options available makes the project more viable, it's exciting to see the potential for it becoming a reality. Planning Consultant D'Amato suggested documentation of discussion with the PZC and a statement of your support should accompany the CIF application as it makes the submission of the application stronger.

1075 1076 1077

Chairman Gobin asked if the Commissioners had any questions for First Selectman Bowsza?

1078 1079 1080

1081 1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

Commissioner Thurz questioned if the Broad Brook Fire Department would use the second floor of the Broad Brook Fire Station? First Selectman Bowsza suggested they haven't made any decisions at present but they need the space, one of the Chiefs uses his desk as his office. First Selectman Bowsza suggested this gives us 15 years to develop a plan for them growing out of that space. First Selectman Bowsza indicated he didn't know what will happen at the Town Hall Annex. There's a need for locker space for the female Police officers and the Emergency Operations Center needs space.

1088 1089 1090

Chairman Gobin indicated she wasn't aware that Scout Hall was a Town building. First Selectman Bowsza indicated it's a Town building on Town owned land, the Scout Hall Building Committee has a 99 year lease for use of the building. They have agreed to a lease adjustment which gives the Town total operational control of the building and the addition. Their mission, which is to provide space for Youth groups, needs to be

preserved, that aligns with the Town's intent to provide space for Park and Recreation activities, and civic groups, such as the Lion's Club and the Rotary Club. He noted a large advantage of this plan is the meeting space in the center of the building would remain and could be used for Senior activities during the week, and would provide them some privacy which improves the quality of our service delivery. Chairman Gobin noted people rented Scout Hall for craft fairs, would they still be able to do that? First Selectman Bowsza suggested fees associated with rentals of the facility would go into a fund which would go back to Parks and Recreation for funding for programming for youth groups.

 Commissioner Sauerhoefer then shared an interior floor plan of the expanded building, which reflected the proposed locations of the various services. First Selectman Bowsza noted the Town already has received State funding for lights for the soccer fields at Abbe Road so the Town isn't actually spending a lot of Town funding because we're making use of State funding.

Commissioner Kowalski questioned if this proposal would take the place of past consideration of using Solnit North for a Town Hall? First Selectman Bowsza replied affirmatively, noting the State receives Federal funding to operate Solnit North. He also noted the facility is much larger than the space needed to provide services for the Town.

Hearing no further questions First Selectman Bowsza requested confirmation of the PZC's support for this project.

MOTION: That the Planning and Zoning Commission supports this project and move it forward.

Kowalski moved/Thurs seconded/<u>DISCUSSION:</u> None VOTE: In Favor: Gobin/Kowalski/Leason/Thurz

 Opposed: No one Abstained: Sauerhoefer

First Selectman Bowsza thanked the Commission for their support. He noted he often hears that East Windsor's Seniors participate in programs in Enfield and South Windsor and Ellington. He'd like to see East Windsor get to a point where we're attracting Seniors from other Towns. First Selectman Bowsza felt this Community Center project is a big part of that.

	N OF EAST WINDSOR NNING AND ZONING COMMISSION						
_	Regular Meeting #1830 – July 12, 2022 In-Person and						
	M Teleconference						
Meeti	ng ID: 714 897 1799						
MEE'	FING MINUTES						
XVI.	EXECUTIVE SESSION: None						
	Carina na fanda a larina and la Aranda Chairman Calina allad fan anadian fan						
	Seeing no further business on the Agenda Chairman Gobin called for a motion for						
	adjournment.						
XVII.	ADJOURNMENT:						
	MOTION: To ADJOURN this Meeting at 8:21 p.m.						
	Kowalski moved/Leason seconded/VOTE: In Favor: Unanimous						
Respe	ctfully submitted,						
Peg H	offman, Recording Secretary, East Windsor Planning and Zoning Commission						